
Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday March 20th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the March 20th, 2023, Regular Meeting of The Lyman Board of Selectmen. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (C) real or personal property matters.
1.M.R.S.A §405 (A) personnel matters

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board.
o Katrina Randal – Inquiry regarding property access dispute off of Old County Rd
o Karen Kane – Inquiry regarding forming a Bunganut committee

b. Mail
c. Complaints

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 3/6/2023.

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #41 in the amount of $27,177.74
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #40 (FY2023) in the amount of $64,664.62

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Annual Town Report Dedication – Tabled from last meeting.
b. ARPA funding – discuss RFPs. Where are we at
c. Appointment LHO – Review approve, application submitted.
d. Handicap ramp – discussion on project
e. Old Kennebunk Road – review/ discuss procedure, see email
f. Discuss Municipal Election, review/sign orders

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Ordinance Review Committee –  review/approve bylaws & mission statement
b. Parks and Recs – Requested waiver for insurance documents, see email.
c. Town Clerk – Requested waiver for insurance documents, see email.
d. Planning Board – Request to add Ordinance Amendment Article to Town Meeting Warrant.
e. Road Commissioner –
f. Fire Chief –
g. Tax Clerk – February Report
h. CEO – Review/approve – Updates to fee schedule, review/approve. Discussed at last meeting
i. Board of Assessment Review –

o Discuss board secretary/ duties.
o Appointment – application received for board member.

j. Treasurer –
g. Town Hall Expansion Committee – Review/ approve quotes received for Survey of Town

Hall.



k. Other  -

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Committee Request for AV/IT Equipment Use –

o Budget: Michelle, Vicky
o ORC: Mike, Peggy

b. Appointment – Application received for Comprehensive Plan Committee
c. Cemetery Committee – Review/approve resignation, see email.
d. Discuss procedure/policy re: contacting Town Attorney
e. Assessor Request for Board approval, see email.
f. Assessor Request to contact Town Council
g. Review/approve Key policy for Lock box
h. Approve PO for Jim Thomas GIS Services.
i. Approve PO for Kennebunk Pond Beach Committee Quote for Architect Services

OTHER 
ADJOURN 



From: katrina randall
To: Selectmen Board Clerk
Subject: request to be put on agenda
Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 1:42:08 PM

Hi, 
You and I have communicated on the cemetery committee and the easy GPS program.  I really want to get there
soon to show you. 

The purpose of this email is to request a place on the next available selectmen's meeting. This would be regarding
Ray Poirier who is denying access to people up Old County Rd off Williams Rd. 

Several of the abutters of this road would be attending, along with myself.  And I think it would be helpful to have
both the code enforcement officer (brenda carland), and the assessor (Laurie Gonska) attend as they have additional
information about Mr Poirier's request for buildings of some kind at some point.

the abutters:  Lisa and Alan Bouchard, Jamie and Sue Bridgeo

Once I hear from you,  I'll contact the Bouchards and Bridgeo's also.  

thanks !

Katrina
Katrina Randall, RN 
PH: 207-651-2174
Geriatric Care Manager
A Katrina, Inc.

email: akatrinacare@gmail.com

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: Please be advised that in accordance with the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) The information contained in
this message, and in any accompanying documents may contain protected health information
and is intended solely for use by the intended recipient and which belongs to A Katrina, Inc.
This information is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is
addressed. If you are not the intended recipient of this information, you are hereby notified
that any disclosure, copying, distribution, or, the taking of any action in reliance on this
information, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please
immediately notify the sender by e-mail and delete the original message. Thank you.     

ITEM#2: (a.) 

mailto:akatrinacare@gmail.com
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:akatrinacare@gmail.com


Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday March 6th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 5 

Selectboard members present: Ralph “Rusty” Blackington (Chair), David Alves (Via Zoom), Jessica Picard, 
 John Tibbetts  
Selectboard members absent: Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair) 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
David Alves – Explains he has sent to the board a scope of work for surveying services for the 
Town Hall Expansion. There have been three quotes that were submitted, at this point the 
committee or the board needs to choose a quote to get things in motion.  
John Tibbetts – Asks if there is a long lead time for surveyors. 
David Alves – States at least four to six weeks, approximately. He recommends we should put 
out to bid for the architect/ engineer firm. 
John Tibbetts – Makes a motion to move this forward provided the Select Board Clerk doesn’t 
come back with anything that says the board can’t move forward.  
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. 
David Alves – States the chairman of the Town Hall expansion Committee has all three bids 
and he will contact him to send the quotes to Lindsay.   
John Tibbetts – Verifies the procedure is the board will review those bids at the next meeting 
and choose one.  
Motion passes: 4-0-0 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board.
No public input

b. Mail  • York County Sheriff February Report
c. Complaints -none

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 2/21/2023.

Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to approve. John Tibbetts seconds. Motion passes: 4-0-0

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #39 in the amount of $25,330.22

David Alves – Makes a motion to approve. Jessica Picard seconds. Motion passes: 4-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #38 (FY2023) in the amount of $591,847.98

David Alves – Makes a motion to approve. Jessica Picard seconds. Motion passes: 4-0-0

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Annual Town Report Dedication

Ralph Blackington – Suggests the board continue to review the suggestions and come back
to this topic at the next meeting.

DRAFT
ITEM #3: (a.) Minutes 3-6-23



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday March 6th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 5 

b. Review Audio Video Recording Equipment Use policy. Tabled from last meeting.
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to accept the policy. David Alves seconds the motion.
Motion passes: 4-0-0

c. IT Contracting services – RFP. Discuss timelines. Tabled from last meeting.
Lindsay Gagne – Asks the board if they would like to do a single-year contract or multi-year
contract. If doing a multi-year, we will want to make sure we negotiate a non-appropriation
clause.
Jessica Picard – Recommends putting out the RFP as a one-year contract with a multi-year
renewal option.
Ralph Blackington- Suggests at least three years and agrees doing a one year with the
additional options.
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to proceed with the RFP for IT services with bids due on
April 17th, 2023.
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion.
Motion passes: 4-0-0

d. ARPA funding – discuss RFPs.
David Alves – Makes a motion Ralph Blackington is the liaison for the Ball Field project
and Thomas Hatch being the liaison for the Beach side of Bunganut Park.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0

John Tibbetts – Makes a motion that Brad Nikel is the liaison for the Transfer Station
project and David Alves being the liaison for the Kennebunk Pond Beach project.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion and adds discussion; motion pending if Brad Nikel is
in favor of being the lead for the project.
David Alves – States he will offer help to Brad if he needs support.
Motion passes: 4-0-0

e. Franchise agreement – discuss setting up a workshop with Tony.
A workshop is scheduled on Tuesday March 14th, 2023 at 6:00pm located at the Town Hall.

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Road Commissioner – none
b. Ordinance Review Committee – Question regarding Comprehensive Plan.

Peggy MacDonald – Presents to the board copies of the mission statement and bylaws from
the Ordinance Review Committee (ORC) to review at a later time. She mentions at the last
select board meeting there was discussion of holding off on the Franchise Ordinance. The
ORC will hold off on reviewing that ordinance for now until the board decides they want
them to revisit it. She states the ORC is reviewing a new law, LD 2003, which will require
municipalities to be compliant with less restrictive housing regulations. The law requires
that municipalities can no longer deny an accessory dwelling unit on a single house lot
provided they still meet setbacks, shoreland zoning, etc. The ORC will need to look at all the
zones and define what multi-family means in each zone. She requests the board assemble a
Comprehensive Plan Committee to help address areas in the Comprehensive Plan that
would pertain to LD 2003 as well as, any other growth areas.

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday March 6th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 5 

Brenda Charland – Suggests getting members from different committees to assist may be 
helpful in revising the plan.  
Jessica Picard – Asks on how many members are typically on the committee. After some 
further discussion, it’s recommended possibly seven with other committees offering liaison 
support. 

c. Fire Chief –
Matt Duross – States the Fire Department is currently recruiting new staff. All the striker
equipment has come in and been set up. The extrication equipment should be coming in a
couple of weeks, and they are still waiting on the ballistic vests to come in. They are
currently still working on selling the old fire truck. They also have a budget committee
meeting for GMFD on March 16th, 6:30p at the fire department and he is inviting the Select
Board and Lyman budget committee.

d. Kennebunk Pond Beach Committee – Karen Kane
Karen Kane – Asks the board for clarification on the ARPA funds. The Kennebunk Pond
Beach Committee has worked very hard to pull together all the data to ensure a cost
estimate. Further delay of the project will increase costs. The committee is requesting that
the ARPA funds be allocated per project to ensure they can get funding in a timely manner.
Ralph Blackington – States the board is currently working on putting together RFPs for all
projects and will put them out at the same time so they can review all the quotes/bids
received. Once reviewed, they will have a clear idea of costs for each project. From that
point, they can start to prioritize specific scopes of each project in effort to get the most out
of each of them and ensure funds are allocated.

e. Tax Clerk - none
f. CEO – Review/approve Tree cutting permit.

Brenda Charland – Explains to the board the current Zoning Ordinance clearly lays out a
process for tree cutting in the Shoreland Zone. She has developed a tree cutting permit to
establish a record that will be kept with the map/lot files to maintain historical data. She
researched other fees in other Towns, the average being $25.00 per tree. She is
recommending a fee of $15.00 per tree to cover costs of her administrative time and travel.
John Tibbetts – Makes a motion to adopt the tree cutting permit and $15.00/tree fee.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion.
David Alves – Asks if someone would have to pay for harvesting.
Brenda Charland – States it is only for selective trees in Shoreland Zoning.
Motion passes: 4-0-0
Brenda Charland – States she will update the Fee schedule, but she did notice for Zoning
Board of Appeals (ZBA) application fees are set for $500.00 and she thinks this is a lot of
money for a citizen to have to go to an appeal. She recommends $250.00.
David Alves – Asks if the ZBA had requested the increase last year and suggests checking
into that before coming to a conclusion.

g. Treasurer – Expense Report 3-2-23
h. Town Hall Expansion Committee – Discussed under Item #1
i. Other  - none

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday March 6th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 4 of 5 

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. YMCA Contract amendment request, see email. Discuss setting up a workshop.

Ralph Blackington – Suggests waiting for Town Council input on the proposed updates to
the agreement.

b. Handicap Ramp for side door, discuss approval for funds.
Ralph Blackington – States he got a quote from Thyng Paving not to exceed $2,500.00 and
the board needs to decide if taking funds out of Capital Improvement or Town Hall Reserve.
There is discussion among the board; the board agrees to take funds out of capital
improvement.
John Tibbetts – Makes a motion to hire Thynge Paving on their quote not to exceed
$2,500.00 to complete a handicap access ramp and take funds out of Capital
improvement.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion.
David Alves – Asks if a railing is required.
Ralph Blackington – States it didn’t include a railing, it was just a dig and regrade from the
door all the way to the parking lot, four-feet wide. They felt confident that it was a long
enough distance from the parking lot to the door to make the pitch within grade, but he
will check on the railing requirements.
Motion passes: 4-0-0

c. Parks and Recs Field Use Request Form – Review/Approve
John Tibbetts – Asks if the board will look into doing a fee structure for use of the field
considering costs of maintenance and revenue options for the Town.
Ralph Blackington – States the board should have a workshop.
David Alves – Suggests looking into how many teams access this field to help determine the
potential of revenue.
Ralph Blackington – States he can get some data on the field side.
John Tibbetts – Makes a motion to approve the field use form.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion and adds discussion that the board relay to this
organization that we are currently reviewing a fee structure so we can be clear to them
what changes may be coming.
John Tibbets – Rescinds his motion.
David Alves – Suggests tabling this to next meeting and looking at the data of the field use.
Jessica Picard – Asks if everyone that uses the field fill out a field use form, can we check
historical data on the forms, and do these organizations have to provide insurance.
Lindsay Gagne – States this is the first form that has been submitted.
David Alves – States if we don’t determine a fee structure or no fee structure, then it will be
difficult for these teams to put a fall program together.

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

OTHER 

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday March 6th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 5 of 5 

ADJOURN 

Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to adjourn. John Tibbetts Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0 

__________________________________________ 
Ralph “Ralph” Blackington (Chair) 

__________________________________________ 
Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair) 

_____________________________________________ 

David Alves 

_____________________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

_____________________________________________ 

John Tibbetts 

I, Lindsay Gagne, Clerk to the Select Board of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting 
of 5 pages are the original minutes of the Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting dated March 6th, 2023 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne DRAFT



ITEM#4: (a.) Payroll Warrant





ITEM#4: (b.) AP Warrant













I would like to dedicate the town report to the Planning Board. Most of the members have been serving 
on the Board for many years , attending meetings, going on site walks and having public hearings. They 
are very devoted to our town and spend enormous amounts of time studying the applications and 
zoning.  

I think it would be nice to recognize the Cemetery Committee this year. The do more that the 

townspeople realize. 

My vote would be for all the employees at the Transfer station that keep our Transfer station flowing 

and all that they do for our citizens when they arrive there to dispose of their trash. No matter what the 

weather conditions are they are always there and keep it running smoothly. 

Louisa Nunan. She is our oldest remaining female Select Board member. She blazed the trail and has 

been a longtime resident.  

Brad Nikel. He truly is a treasure to the town and goes above and beyond in his work. He truly cares 

about the Town and is a wealth of knowledge.  

Shirly Harrison or Maurice St. Clair. 

ITEM#5: (a.) Town Report Dedication (Recommendations)



ITEM#5: (e.) Old Kennebunk Rd































ORDER 

VOTED: That it be and is hereby Ordered that a Municipal Election of the Town of Lyman be 

held on June 13th, 2023, and that an attested copy of this order be placed on file with the Town 

Clerk of the Town of Lyman.  

Given under our hands this 20th day of March, 2023 at Lyman Maine 

______ 

Ralph Blackington; Chair Thomas Hatch; Vice Chair 

____________ 

John Tibbetts David Alves 

Jessica Picard 

DRAFT
ITEM#5: (f.) Review/Sign Orders & Election Layout



ORDER 

VOTED: That it be and is hereby Ordered that a Annual Town Meeting of the Town of Lyman 

be held on June 15th, 2023, and that an attested copy of this order be placed on file with the 

Town Clerk of the Town of Lyman.  

Given under our hands this 20th day of March, 2023 at Lyman Maine 

______ 

Ralph Blackington; Chair Thomas Hatch; Vice Chair 

____________ 

John Tibbetts David Alves 

Jessica Picard 

DRAFT





ITEM#6: (a.) Ordinance Review Committee, Bylaws & Mission Statement









TOWN OF LYMAN 

Independent Contractor/Subcontractor Requirements Policy 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

P a g e  1 | 3 

Adopted: October 3rd, 2022 Amended: 

PURPOSE:  The purpose of this policy is to establish and provide reasonable requirements for 

Department Heads when using outside Independent Contractor/Subcontractors and to limit 

the financial liability to the Town of Lyman. 

All Department Heads are responsible to ensure that the Treasurer has the following paperwork in hand 

PRIOR to an Independent Contractor/Subcontractor performing any duties for the Town of Lyman: 

o Worker’s Compensation Insurance each Contractor/Subcontractor will carry Worker’s

Compensation Insurance as defined under State of Maine Worker’s Compensation Law,

39-A M.R.S.A.  Contractor/Subcontractor’s will carry employers Liability Limits of

$500,000 Each Accident/$500,000 Policy Limit – Disease/$500,000 Each Employee –

Disease.   If the Contractor/Subcontractor is not required to carry Worker’s

Compensation according to the State of Maine Worker’s Compensation Law, 39-A

M.R.S.A., then the Contractor/Subcontractor must provide the Town of Lyman with an

approved Independent Contractor/Subcontractor’s Status from the State of Maine

Worker’s Compensation Board.

o Public Liability Insurance (or Commercial General Liability) Covering the

legal liability (including liability assumed contractually) of the Contractor/Subcontractor,

covering claims for bodily injury and property damage arising out of the services to be

performed by the Contractor/Subcontractor, or those working on

Contractor/Subcontractor’s behalf, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per one

occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate (subject to a per project general aggregate

provision), $1,000,000 Products/Completed Operations aggregate limit OR in the event

of any amendment to the Maine Torts Claims Act, 14 M.R.S.A. §8101-8118, that

increases the limitation of liability to the Town of Lyman under such Act,

Contractor/Subcontractor shall increase its amount of coverage so that it is not less than

the limitation of the liability of the Town of Lyman established under the Act, to protect

the Contractor/Subcontractor and the Town of Lyman from claims and damages that may

arise while the Contractor/Subcontractor is performing work for the Town of Lyman,

whether such operations be by Contractor/Subcontractor or by anyone directly or

indirectly employed by it.  All Certificate of Liability Insurance shall name the Town of

Lyman, 11 So. Waterboro Rd., Lyman, ME 04002 as additional insured. A Waiver of

Subrogation in favor of Town of Lyman must also be included.

ITEM#6: (b. & c.) Request for waiver of policy, see emails. 



TOWN OF LYMAN 

Independent Contractor/Subcontractor Requirements Policy 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

P a g e  2 | 3 

o Automobile Liability Insurance (if applicable) in the amount of not less than One

Million Dollars ($1,000,000), combined single limit, OR in the event of any amendment

to the Maine Torts Claims Act, 14 M.R.S.A. §8101-8118, that increases the limitation of

liability to the Town of Lyman under such Act, Contractor/Subcontractor shall increase

its amount of coverage so that it is not less than the limitation of the liability of the Town

of Lyman established under the Act, to protect the Contractor/Subcontractor and the

Town of Lyman from claims and damages that may arise while the

Contractor/Subcontractor is performing work for the Town of Lyman, whether such

operations be by Contractor/Subcontractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed

by it.  All Certificate of Liability Insurance forms shall name the Town of Lyman, 11 So.

Waterboro Rd., Lyman, ME 04002 as additional insured.

o Town of Lyman Contractor/Subcontractor Agreement is to be signed by the owner or

a representative of the company that has the authority to bind the Independent

Contractor/Subcontractor to such an agreement. The Board of Selectmen may require

revisions to its basic contractor / subcontractor agreement in its sole distraction. The basic

form prepared herewith shall not be used for project involving construction, hazardous

substances, or professional service.

o An Internal Revenue Service, Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification

Number and Certification must be filled out and submitted prior to payment unless

already on file with the Town of Lyman.

o Any request to waive a portion(s) of this policy must be presented to the Board of

Selectmen at a regularly scheduled meeting.

o All contract or subcontracts require advance approval by the Board of Selectmen. The

foregoing provisions are minimum requirements. The Board of Selectmen may impose

additional or increased requirements in its discretion based on the nature of the work to

be performed and may involve legal counsel or the Town’s insurer in the review.

Contracts involving construction, hazardous substances, or professional services (e.g.

architects or engineers) shall require additional insurance coverage to be discussed with

the Board of Selectmen.





From: Holly Hart
To: Selectmen Board Clerk
Subject: Meeting
Date: Wednesday, March 8, 2023 7:41:26 PM

Hi Lindsey
I put a Field request in your mailbox.  Can you put parks and rec on the agenda for the next meeting.  I want to ask
about the required papers for people hired by the town, all that paperwork doesn’t seem needed for someone Who is
just hired for two hours for an event.
Thank you
Holly

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:hhart927@yahoo.com
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov


From: Town Clerk
To: Selectmen Board Clerk; Ralph Blackington; Thomas Hatch; Treasurer
Subject: FW: Independent Contractors
Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 11:24:29 AM
Attachments: insurances.pdf

Good Morning,
I just had conversation with Jeanette regarding Rick Hull, our Moderator for Town meeting, being
paid as a Independent Contractor. She said to ask if the Board would waive this requirement for him.
So, I’m asking the Board to discuss this and make a decision before I call him and ask him to gather
and fill out a bunch of paperwork for one or possibly 2 times a year moderating annual/special town
meetings.

Also, I noticed our locksmith, Joey Brooks, isn’t on the list Jeanette sent out. If his services are going
to be required in the future depending on what you are planning to do with the key situation,
someone should reach out to him for paperwork needed so he is on file before we actually need him
as per Jeanette’s email. 

Thanks,
Polly

mailto:townclerk@lyman-me.gov
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:RalphB@lyman-me.gov
mailto:thomash@lyman-me.gov
mailto:treasurer@lyman-me.gov



*Every contractor (meaning anyone who will be performing services on town property, equipment, or for the town) 
  Are required to have the following on file:


Agreement
W9
General Liablity
Auto Liability (if applicable)
Workers Comp Insurance OR State of Maine Workers Comp declaration of independency


  It is up to Department Heads, or the employee calling for service, to ensure that all items have been received by
   the Town PRIOR to any work being done.


Name
Hold 
Harmless W9 on File Gen Liab Auto Liab Workers Comp OR State WC Ind
On File Ends Ends Ends Ends


Atlantic Recycling Y 1/1/2023
Bradley Nikel 12/15/2023 Y 1/14/2024 2/5/2024
CIA Y 2/24/2024 2/24/2024 7/30/2023
David Gerard dba Gerard Tree Svcs 12/27/2023 Y 10/3/2022 1/12/2023 6/13/2023
David Riley 12/28/2023 Y 2/10/2024 1/8/2024
David Sawyer dba Sawyer & Sons Y 10/5/2023 10/5/2023
Dayton Sand Y 12/31/2023 12/31/2023 12/31/2023
Dayton Snow Fighters 2/9/2024 Y 10/20/2023 10/20/2023 10/20/2023
Gerard Excavation 12/27/2023 Y 3/21/2023 6/18/2023 6/18/2023
Haley's Metal Shop Y 1/25/2024 1/25/2024 1/25/2024
Jessica's Cleaning Service Y 1/26/2024 1/7/2024
John Wescott 2/10/2024 Y 1/10/2024 11/10/2023 2/14/2024
Larry Blancette dba Breakwood Tree 1/5/2024 Y 1/23/2024
Morton Salt Y 4/30/2023 4/30/2023
Municipal Resources Inc Y 1/26/2024 1/26/2024 1/26/2024


Must have one


CONTRACTOR INSURANCES


Page 1 of 2







Rob Norberg dba Atlantic Chimney 12/13/2023 Y 4/12/2023
Shoem Corp Y 3/7/2023 3/7/2023 3/7/2023
Steele Nickel 1/1/2024 Y 4/25/2023 4/25/2023 4/25/2023
William Single JR.  Dba KCB Y 10/3/2023
Zebra Striping Y 7/18/2023 7/18/2023 7/18/2023


Page 2 of 2







TOWN OF LYMAN, MAINE 
PLANNING BOARD 

PROPOSED REVISION TO LYMAN ZONING ORDINANCE 
FOR JUNE 2023 TOWN MEETING WARRANT ARTICLE 

March 16, 2023 

To: Lyman Select Board 

Subject: Proposed Revision to Town of Lyman Zoning Ordinance 

Reference: (a) Lyman Zoning Ordinance (LZO) Amendment Procedure Article 1.8

The Planning Board held a public hearing on March 15, 2023 on the attached LZO amendment. 
No public comments were received. After reviewing the amendment at the March 15, 2023 PB 
meeting, the PB voted to refer the attached amendment to the Select Board for inclusion as an 
Article for the Annual Town Meeting in June 2023. 

Please refer to the attached proposed LZO amendment for inclusion on the June 2023 Town of 
Lyman Annual Town Meeting Warrant, as an Article to be voted on at the meeting.  

Roderick Tetu 
Roderick Tetu, Chairman 

Attached: 

Proposed Lyman Zoning Ordinance Amendment for June 2023 Town Meeting Warrant Article 

Copy to with proposed amendment: 

Town Clerk 
Code Enforcement Officer 
PB members 

ITEM#6: (d.) Ordinance Amendment Proposal



Lyman Zoning Ordinance Amendment for June 2023 Town Meeting Warrant Article 

Shall an amendment to the Town of Lyman Zoning Ordinance Article 1, Section 1.8.3 

Contract Zoning be enacted as follows: 

Deleted language struck through Added language underlined  

1.8.3 Contract Zoning 

B. Authorization

Fourth sentence:

Areas rezoned under this provision shall be consistent with, but not limited to, the existing and 
permitted (whether permitted or with site plan approved conditional) uses within any zoning 
district. 

F. Recommendation

Before forwarding a recommendation of a contract zoning amendment to the Board of 
Selectmen, the Planning Board shall make a finding on each of the four standards in this 
subsection. A favorable recommendation to the Board of Selectmen requires a positive finding 
on all four standards. If the Planning Board makes a negative finding on any of the standards, its 
recommendation shall be negative. The Planning Board shall base its recommendations on 
whether the rezoning: 

1. Is for land with an unusual nature or location
1. Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan;
2. Is consistent with, but not limited to, the existing uses and permitted uses within any

zoning district; and
3. That the conditions proposed are sufficient to meet the intent of this section; and
4. Provides reasonable expectations of an overall benefit to the Town as a whole.



Report to Selectmen 

Month of February 2023 

2022-2023 Tax Year 

Real Estate Tax Commitment - $7,417,133.10 

Personal Property Tax Commitment – $     41,542.02    

Total Tax Commitment: $7,458,675.12 

Supplemental Taxes YTD: $       3,554.21 

Abatements Granted YTD: $    4,609.80 

Prior Year(s) Abatement(s) YTD: $       968.61 

Real Estate / Personal Property Tax Payments Collected $    60,676.41 
Includes Current, Delinquent, Prepayments, and Lien Payments for the month. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

Monthly Excise Tax 

Excise Tax Received 

Vehicles registered here at office:   $  74,269.87 

Online Rapid Renewal Service      15,382.98 

Total Vehicle Excise   $  89,652.85 

Boat Excise 

Boats registered here at office:   $        147.00  

Online Registration Service   $____111.00         

Total Boat Excise    $        258.00 

Total Excise   $   89,910.85 

Excise Tax Reimbursement   10/23/2022    $     9,877.52 

Excise Tax Collected by State 

Year-to-date excise collection   $ 802,347.98 

Respectfully submitted:  Susan J. Bellerose, Tax Collector 

ITEM#6: (g.) Tax Clerk February Report



ITEM#6: (h.) CEO Updated Fee Schedule



ITEM#6: (g.) Quotes for surveyor. 







Committee Request for AV/IT Equipment use – 

Budget Committee request assigned designee: 

o Michelle Feliccitti

o Vicky Gavel

Ordinance Review Committee request assigned designee: 

o Michael Rancourt

o Peggy MacDonald

ITEM#7: (a.) Request for Audio/Video equipment use



From: Assessor
To: Brendon S. Bean
Cc: Selectmen Board Clerk
Subject: Assessing Agreement - Remote Access
Date: Wednesday, March 15, 2023 1:39:05 PM
Attachments: J Murphy Agrmt.pdf
Importance: High

Hello –

Jim Murphy, Murphy Appraisal Services, has arranged to be here in Lyman on Friday, March 31st and

if needed Saturday, April 1st. 
This is for services outlined in the Agreement for Assessing Training Services executed by BOS on
February 8, 2023.  (See Attached)
Jim and I will be working together on as many issues as possible while on site in Lyman.
However, if all is not accomplished and work needs to continue off-site (Jim resides I believe 2.5
hours north of Lyman), Jim included remote access (to TRIO) in his Agreement.

I am hereby requesting arrangements be made for successful operation and carrying out of the
services which would include providing Jim remote access to TRIO when/if needed.  (Agreement
Item #2)
I also draw your attention to Agreement Item #13.  While he is at Town Hall, he may require a
separate connection to TRIO while working in the meeting room.  (Absolutely not a definite… but
would like it arranged so if needed, it’s there.)  Perhaps that can easily be satisfied with the
Assessor’s Laptop ? Please let me know.

If this requires additional more specific approval from the BOS, please make this e-mail my request

for this to be on the Agenda for the next meeting – Monday, March 20th.

Please let me know if you require anything further from me at this time. 

Sincerely,
Laurie Gonska, CMA
Town of Lyman, Maine
207-247-0645
assessor@lyman-me.gov

ITEM#7: (e.) Assessor request for Board Approval. 

mailto:assessor@lyman-me.gov
mailto:support@beandata.com
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:assessor@lyman-me.gov





















TOWN OF LYMAN 

Access/Key Policy 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

P a g e  1 | 1 

Adopted: Amended: 

PURPOSE:  To protect property, people, and sensitive information 

PROCEDURE: 

It is the duty of the Town Manager to determine individual accessibility, based on need, to 

different areas (rooms, gates, information) of the Town of Lyman and to issue key/codes to those 

individuals.    

In the absence of the Town Manager the interim Town Manager shall have this duty 

In the absence of a Town Manager or Interim Town Manager, the Select Board shall name an 

appointed employee to administer the function of access. The Board shall be the authority 

requesting and/or assigning accessibility (in writing) and shall set forth the administrator, named 

above, to carry out this duty. During the absence of a Town Manager/Interim Town Manger no 

elected Official or Employee shall have access to anything other than their respective offices and 

access to the building in which the respective office is. All other access deemed necessary must 

be carried out using a cell phone code access, specifically assigned to them, for the lock box 

containing the Master Key within the Town Hall.  

All keys not issued shall be kept locked in the vault of the Town Hall. 

Adopted:    

Effective:   Immediately 

______________________________________Ralph “Rusty” Blackington - Chair 

______________________________________Thomas Hatch – Vice Chair 

______________________________________John Tibbetts  

______________________________________David Alves 

______________________________________Jessica Picard 

A Majority of the Board of Selectpersons 

Lyman, Maine 

ITEM#7: (g.) Review/approve Key Policy



ITEM#7: (h.) Purchase Order for GIS Mapping services





726-86-90-999

ITEM#7: (i.) Purchase Order Quote for Kennebunk Pond



Kennebunk Pond Beach Improvements - Town of Lyman
Town of Lyman, ME.

Landscape Architectural Scope of Services:  Design & Technical Development & Construction Documentation - BID PROJECT 

davidmaynesSTUDIO
26 Storer Street. Kennebunk, ME 04043

I. Details Package Development for Client Review $795.00

Develop Digital Design File - For Consultant Coordination
Prepare Material Relationships/Details For Coordination: Hardscape
Finalize Planting Approach & General Species Composition: Softscape 
Graphics Production & Package Formatting
Communication and Coordination w/Committee

II. Construction Documentation: Develop Landscape Bid Package For Contractor Pricing $5,820.00

Sheet Set Organization & Setup
Finalize Drawing & Specifications Package Suitable for Contractor Pricing:

Demolition & Site Preparation Plan
Materials & Layout Plan
Final Grading & Drainage Plan
Planting Plan
Details, As Needed

Update Estimate of Probable Cost

Communication and Coordination w/Committee & Contractor
(4) Mtgs: (1) Town Review Mtg - In Person, (1) MeDEP, (1) MeDOT, (1) Pre-Construction Mtg

Actual Site Visit Task Order May Deviate From Above - Per Contractor Sequencing  
TOTAL DESIGN FEES $6,615.00

25% Municipal Rural Development / Non-Profit Pro Bono Credit $1,654.00

TOTAL FEES TO PROJECT COMPLETION $4,961.00

Landscape Architectural Scope of Services Does Not Include Additional Surveying Fees, Professional Engineering Fees, Additional Professional Consultant Fees, & Regulatory/Permitting Fees

Direct Expenses at Cost Plus 10 % (See Current Rate Sheet) - PRO BONO 
Travel Expenses:
   Mileage (at IRS reimbursement rate)
   Meals and Accommodation
Other Direct Expenses may include (but are not limited to):

Telephone/Fax/Data
Reprographics/Scans/Copying/Plots/Prints
Postage/Shipping
Photography/Processing
Administrative Fees

UPDATED 3/14/2023 FOR FINAL ISSUE




